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          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good afternoon.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation and Committee on

          5  Technology in Government.  My name is John Liu. I

          6  have the privilege of Chairing the Transportation

          7  Committee and the added privilege and bonus of

          8  Co-Chairing today's hearing with Gale Brewer,

          9  Council Member and Chairperson of the Technology and

         10  Government Committee.

         11                 Today we convene this hearing for the

         12  purpose of considering two bills, Intro No. 537,

         13  introduced by moi, yours truly, which would require

         14  the Department of Transportation to place all

         15  parking restrictions online, searchable by block.

         16  Proposed Intro No. 567-A, introduced by Council

         17  Member Vincent Gentile, would require the Department

         18  of Transportation to conduct traffic studies of

         19  intersections where there has been an accident

         20  involving a pedestrian and vehicle and where there

         21  has been a pattern of vehicular accidents.

         22                 Most people would find it easier to

         23  decipher certain hieroglyphics than some of the

         24  parking signs in this City.  Many people have

         25  received parking tickets despite their good-faith
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          2  efforts in attempts to interpret signs and park

          3  legally.

          4                 Clearly, in New York City we need to

          5  regulate usage of limited parking spaces, but this

          6  has to be done in a clear and concise way and many

          7  times this does not seem to be the case.

          8                 Earlier this year, a local business

          9  group, the 34th Street Partnership, addressed this

         10  problem by paying for 1,200 streamlined parking

         11  signs.  A private company has already placed parking

         12  restrictions for Manhattan online but charges a fee

         13  for its online service.  I just don't think that New

         14  Yorkers should be required to pay to understand and

         15  get the information about parking restrictions

         16  online with regard to the restrictions on any

         17  particular street in New York City.  And my bill,

         18  Intro 537, would require these parking regulations

         19  to be posted online by block and allow people to

         20  search these regulations and restrictions without

         21  having to pay anything.  And coincidentally, in

         22  today's Gridlock Sam column he printed a letter from

         23  a reader who received a parking ticket because of

         24  confusing and contradictory parking signage.

         25                 Council Member Gentile's bill would
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          2  make streets safer, not only for pedestrians but

          3  also drivers, by requiring the Department of

          4  Transportation to conduct traffic studies of

          5  dangerous intersections and the likes.  Although the

          6  Department of Transportation has helped to reduce

          7  the number of pedestrian fatalities, the job is not

          8  complete.  And the reduction of pedestrian

          9  fatalities statistically certainly doesn't mean

         10  anything to people who are still injured and to the

         11  families of those who are killed on our streets.

         12                 Council Member Gentile's bill would

         13  create a formal process where the Department of

         14  Transportation and the NYPD, the New York Police

         15  Department, would share information about dangerous

         16  intersections and require the Department of

         17  Transportation to study these dangerous

         18  intersections.

         19                 We're delighted to be joined by

         20  distinguished members of the Department of

         21  Transportation, including one of our very favorite,

         22  Michael Primeggia.  Commissioner Primeggia, there

         23  was a nasty rumor going around that you had gotten a

         24  haircut but it's good to see that you're still

         25  intact, kind of like the Bon Jovi of the

                                                            7

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  transportation world, so welcome to today's hearing.

          3                 Let me turn the floor over to my

          4  Co-Chair, Council Member Brewer, the Chairperson of

          5  the Technology and Government Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          7  much.  It's always an honor to Co-Chair with Council

          8  Member John Liu, and certainly we have Council

          9  Member Martinez, Council Member Addabbo, and we'll

         10  hear soon I think from Council Member Gentile.

         11                 I'm going to talk just about Intro

         12  537, even though I am a co-sponsor of both of the

         13  bills, but in terms of technology that's the one I'm

         14  focused on.  I do think it fits very nicely into the

         15  Commissioner of DOITT's plan which brought together

         16  many City agencies talking about ways that customer

         17  service can be improved via technology.  And that's

         18  certainly something that this Administration has

         19  championed, not just 311, but in addition thinking

         20  of ways that the public can be involved directly.  I

         21  do think that if the signs are online visually,

         22  either through mapping, or through just putting the

         23  signs up, the Department would see where there were

         24  challenges.  It's sort of like doing your homework

         25  with your kids when you know when you can do it and
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          2  when you can't.  When you focus on some kind of

          3  research you see where the pit-holes are and where

          4  you need to fill them.  So, I do think there will be

          5  many benefits to online.  One of them would be just

          6  a clarity for the Department and then a clarity of

          7  course that would be transferred online to the

          8  public.

          9                 Second, as Council Member Liu

         10  mentioned, another company has filled a vacuum and

         11  started charging public for this information that is

         12  certainly available for free.  This is not the first

         13  time that this has happened.  I think before

         14  Commissioner Stark at the Department of Finance was

         15  so smart about making the online parking ticket

         16  available, there were certainly companies that love

         17  doing that and sometimes telling people that they

         18  could solve their problem and you wouldn't have to

         19  pay your ticket, totally false information.  So, I

         20  think that in general this is another example where

         21  government has to step up and provide free

         22  information, free to the public, so that a private

         23  company doesn't jump in.

         24                 And finally, I just want to mention

         25  that this would be an example of using the
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          2  technology that's available to help the public.  We

          3  have an example, I think, in terms of many other

          4  places in which the GIS, the Geographic Information

          5  System, can, in fact, help us with base maps, and

          6  building plans, and ways in which this technology is

          7  just advancing so quickly.  So I hope that we pass

          8  this bill and I look forward to hearing from the

          9  Department.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         11  Chairperson Brewer.  And now we turn the floor over

         12  to Council Member Vincent Gentile, the prime sponsor

         13  of Intro No. 567-A.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         15  Chairman Liu and Brewer, first of all, for your

         16  commitment and leadership on the issues of

         17  pedestrian safety and for your proposal for making

         18  New York City's burdensome parking restrictions

         19  available online.  I feel that both of these

         20  measures, if enacted, will result in a high level of

         21  safety for pedestrians and information sharing for

         22  motorists.

         23                 I'm here, as Councilman Liu said, to

         24  speak in favor of my bill, Intro 567-A, which would

         25  require the Department of Transportation to conduct
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          2  studies of traffic accident locations. This bill is

          3  a piece of common-sense legislation that would

          4  legislate cooperation between the New York City

          5  Police Department and New York City Department of

          6  Transportation.

          7                 Under the provisions of this bill,

          8  the NYPD would be required to forward all accident

          9  reports that involve a pedestrian to the Department

         10  of Transportation for analysis and review.  The NYPD

         11  would be similarly required to report on locations

         12  where a trend of motor vehicle accidents have

         13  occurred, and that in the legislation is three more

         14  accidents at a site within a 60-day period.  By

         15  proactively studying accident locations, the DOT

         16  will no longer need to be so heavily reliant on

         17  local residents or civic groups to complain or

         18  petition about these dangerous sites.  Civic-minded

         19  citizens do New York City a great service and many

         20  of them are here in this room today in this regard,

         21  but yet a more proactive approach by the City is

         22  what is sought here by this bill.

         23                 While a report and respond approach

         24  will still exist in many instances, many of our

         25  agencies, making our agencies cooperate with each
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          2  other and respond to data showing dangerous

          3  locations is also necessary.

          4                 Additionally, former DOT Commissioner

          5  Iris Weinshall in conversations with me related to

          6  me that for the DOT in getting accident reports can

          7  be a difficult process.  While both the State

          8  Department of Motor Vehicles and State Department of

          9  Transportation maintain databases of accidents, the

         10  requirement that the City DOT request these

         11  documents from both State agencies complicates the

         12  process, adding complexity and likely delay.  Given

         13  the fact that the New York City Police Department

         14  responds to and records all occurrences of accidents

         15  in the five boroughs, it's far more helpful to

         16  streamline the process between the NYPD and the DOT.

         17  And that is exactly what this bill does.

         18                 My legislation will ensure that the

         19  accident reports involving either a pedestrian or

         20  pattern of motor vehicle accidents is forwarded

         21  directly and automatically to the Department of

         22  Transportation for a comprehensive review and

         23  analysis.  Under this bill any pedestrian accident

         24  would trigger the reporting and any site with three

         25  or more accidents in a 60-day period would also
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          2  likewise trigger this reporting.

          3                 There is really no rationale for the

          4  current red tape that exists in making information

          5  available across different City agencies, but it

          6  might help eliminate dangerous traffic sites.

          7                 For example, accidents are a

          8  recurrent problem at dangerous intersections, and

          9  intersections have been a focus.

         10                 Transportation Alternatives recently

         11  completed a study that found that 50 percent of

         12  accidents that result in a pedestrian fatality or

         13  serious injury occur at just 10 percent of our

         14  intersections.  This really is an alarming finding.

         15  Pedestrian accidents also rose six percent in 2006

         16  over the previous year timeframe in 2005.

         17                 While the latest numbers are still

         18  not in, we definitely do not want this trend to

         19  continue.  So when we receive the final statistics,

         20  certainly we will be looking at them with interest.

         21                 Regardless of those statistics, we

         22  are still, all of us, are charged with doing

         23  everything in our power to ensure that pedestrians

         24  are kept safe on our City streets and locations with

         25  multiple accidents over a brief period are also
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          2  investigated.  Even if those accidents don't involve

          3  a pedestrian, they still need to be looked at and

          4  made safer.

          5                 What's disturbing in this is that in

          6  New York the pedestrian fatalities is a percentage

          7  of total traffic fatalities of the highest

          8  percentage in the nation causing the DOT to classify

          9  pedestrians as the largest at-risk group with

         10  respect to traffic fatalities.

         11                 Pedestrian fatalities consistently

         12  comprise about half of all accident fatalities.

         13  Many more pedestrians die in traffic accidents than

         14  drivers and passengers, motorcyclists and

         15  bicyclists.

         16                 We love New York because it's a

         17  walkable City.  So we all have a special obligation

         18  to keep the City safe for our pedestrians.  More

         19  must, therefore, be done to improve the safety that

         20  we talk about today.  And I know DOT is taking

         21  proactive steps and launched several excellent

         22  programs, including Safe Routes to Schools, as well

         23  as Safe Streets NYC program.  But more needs to be

         24  done and I concur with recent calls of

         25  transportation advocates to fix our City's most
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          2  dangerous streets and intersections.  My legislation

          3  aims to tackle this problem with respect to at least

          4  two types of accidents and/or accident locations.

          5                 So, again, I thank my colleagues for

          6  having brought this to a hearing today and I

          7  appreciate everyone's support.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          9  Member Gentile. We've also been joined by Council

         10  Member Diana Reyna of Brooklyn and Queens, and

         11  Council Member Mike McMahon of Staten Island.

         12                 At this point I would like to invite

         13  our Commissioners from the Department of

         14  Transportation, Michael Primeggia Deputy

         15  Commissioner for Traffic Operations, David Woloch

         16  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs and

         17  Dominick Gervasi.

         18                 Don't you want to sit with us?  Oh,

         19  okay.

         20                 Commissioner Woloch please proceed.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

         22  afternoon, I'm David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for

         23  External Affairs at the New York City Department of

         24  Transportation and with me here today is Michael

         25  Primeggia, DOT's Deputy Commissioner for Traffic
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          2  Operations.  Thank you for inviting us here to

          3  testify on Intro 537 that relates to online access

          4  to parking restriction information and Proposed

          5  Intro 567- A that relates to studies of traffic

          6  accident locations.

          7                 Let me begin by discussing Intro 537.

          8    This bill would require DOT to make available on

          9  its website information on parking restrictions in

         10  the City that would be searchable by each City

         11  block.  It would also require DOT to immediately

         12  update the website whenever there is a change in

         13  parking restrictions whether permanent or temporary.

         14    We are in full agreement with the Council that

         15  making such information available to the public is

         16  valuable and, in fact, we are already in the process

         17  of making this a reality.

         18                 DOT's existing computerized sign

         19  information database called STATUS is an old

         20  mainframe system that was brought online in the

         21  1980s and requires its users to be specially trained

         22  on how to use it.  This system was designed to

         23  assist DOT in maintaining records of traffic

         24  regulatory devices installed on City streets.  It

         25  wasn't designed to allow a user to create their own
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          2  queries or seek parking information for long

          3  stretches of roadway or geographical areas.

          4  Essentially, it is not usable by those who are not

          5  trained and only a small number of DOT personnel and

          6  Department of Finance Administrative Law Judges are

          7  able to use the system.  Given all its limitations,

          8  it is not feasible to bring DOT's current STATUS

          9  system online for general use and therefore, it

         10  obviously wouldn't meet the requirements of this

         11  legislation.

         12                 However, as I noted, a new

         13  procurement to modernize the system, correct its

         14  defects and make it more robust is funded and is in

         15  the works.  We have bid out a contract, reviewed the

         16  proposals and selected a consultant who will develop

         17  this new Sign Information Management System, known

         18  as SIMS.  We anticipate the contract award process

         19  to be completed by February 15th and then it will

         20  take approximately 18 months from this date to get

         21  the new system fully developed and up and running.

         22                 Once it is completed, SIMS will allow

         23  DOT to better manage information and workflow

         24  regarding traffic control devices including signs

         25  and roadway markings.  This now system will enable
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          2  DOT to optimize our operations by keeping track of

          3  installation requests, generating work orders that

          4  provide direction regarding where and how the

          5  traffic control device should be installed,

          6  modified, or removed.  It will also manage inventory

          7  information for traffic control devices and

          8  materials needed for installation, and field crews

          9  will be able to access their assigned work orders in

         10  SIMS.

         11                 One of the benefits and adaptability

         12  of this new SIMS system is that it will allow for

         13  the sign information to be made available to the

         14  public through DOT's website, so that members of the

         15  public will be able to run their own queries and

         16  obtain parking regulation information for large or

         17  small areas or by specific block as contemplated in

         18  Intro 537.  SIMS will be a web based application

         19  with mapping capabilities that will allow users to

         20  view locations in a map based format.  They will be

         21  able to query any location and view the regulations

         22  at a specified location and by time of day or day of

         23  the week.  We hope that this will help address any

         24  confusion as to the parking regulations on

         25  particular blocks.
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          2                 In conclusion, while meeting its

          3  deadline is not feasible, DOT supports the intent of

          4  Intro 537 and we are moving towards making its

          5  provisions a reality.

          6                 Now let me turn to Proposed Intro

          7  567- A.  This bill would require DOT, within seven

          8  days of receiving and accident report, to begin a

          9  study at all traffic accident locations that involve

         10  a pedestrian injury or pedestrian fatality or where

         11  there is a pattern of motor vehicle accidents,

         12  defined as three or more traffic accidents involving

         13  motor vehicles, but not pedestrians, within a 60 day

         14  period.  It would additionally require DOT to

         15  conduct the study within a 60 day period and forward

         16  a copy of the report and any recommendations to the

         17  Police Department, and to the Council Member and

         18  Community Board in whose district the accident

         19  occurred.

         20                 First, let me start by noting that we

         21  share the Council's concerns for traffic safety,

         22  particularly for pedestrians.  Our transportation

         23  network is complex and we are tasked with

         24  effectively balancing and prioritizing the needs of

         25  pedestrians, mass transit users, cyclists, and
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          2  motorists.  But while our street space is shared by

          3  many, New York is above all a walking City, and

          4  safety is our top priority.

          5                 We have done a lot and come a long

          6  way in ensuring the safety of all our roadway users.

          7    Over the last ten years, total fatalities declined

          8  from 493 in 1997, to 321 in 2006, a 35 percent drop.

          9    With regard to pedestrian fatalities in New York,

         10  over the past fifteen years such fatalities have

         11  declined at a rate more than three times faster than

         12  the national average.  The number of pedestrians

         13  killed in the City dropped by 54 percent, from 366

         14  in 1990 to 167 in 2006 and, to date, there have been

         15  108 in 2007. Over the last six years, pedestrian

         16  fatalities have been at their lowest levels ever

         17  since the City started keeping track in 1910. With

         18  regard to injuries there were 1,849 total Type A,

         19  serious pedestrian injuries in 1997 and 1,357 such

         20  injuries in 2006, representing a 27 percent drop.

         21                 It is important to note that when

         22  comparing New York City to the country's ten largest

         23  Cities, New York City ranked number one in safety

         24  over the past ten years when fatalities are

         25  considered in relation to population.  What is more
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          2  noteworthy, however, is that New York City not only

          3  has consistently ranked at number one with the

          4  lowest fatality rate, but also showed the largest

          5  improvement over the past ten years.  While our

          6  fatalities decreased by 34 percent, both Chicago and

          7  Los Angeles only went down by 17 percent.

          8                 Before I discuss DOT's approach to

          9  safety, let me first discuss the bill.  As we have

         10  discussed at previous hearings, the best use of our

         11  resources is to focus on where the safety needs are

         12  the greatest.  The apparent premise of the bill,

         13  that all accidents are the result of a roadway

         14  problem, is simply false. Many accidents, in fact,

         15  are attributable to other circumstances, such as red

         16  light running or driving while intoxicated.  A

         17  single crash could happen at the City's safest

         18  intersection.

         19                 The bill would require DOT to conduct

         20  traffic studies for approximately 1,300 locations

         21  with three or more accidents within sixty days and

         22  for approximately 12,000 pedestrian injury

         23  locations, work that would be impossible to

         24  accomplish with existing staff and resources.  The

         25  total of approximately 13,500 locations that would
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          2  need to be studied each year would require an influx

          3  of additional staff, an additional 180, including

          4  field staff, analysts, engineers and supervisors at

          5  a yearly cost of approximately $9 million.  In

          6  addition, vast amounts of data collection would

          7  probably be needed in order to conduct these

          8  detailed studies at a cost of over $30 million.

          9  Therefore, the total cost to implement this bill

         10  could be over $40 million annually.  Even with these

         11  resources, it would be difficult to always meet the

         12  two month timetable the bill sets out for each

         13  analysis.

         14                 Most important, the preparation of

         15  traffic studies for this large universe of locations

         16  wouldn't make good use of DOT's resources as a means

         17  to enhance safety, nor is it a good way of judging

         18  where to target improvements, in fact, it would draw

         19  much needed resources away from locations where we

         20  can make a greater impact.  DOT takes a more focused

         21  approach as to where to target its safety efforts,

         22  efforts, that have been successful and which we have

         23  discussed at previous hearings.

         24                 Our focused approach includes much of

         25  the day- to- day work undertaken by the Department.
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          2  Traffic safety, in fact, is an integral component of

          3  virtually all the work done by DOT's Bureau of

          4  Traffic Operations in the course of its regular

          5  work.  For example, when roadway markings are

          6  reinstalled following the resurfacing of a street,

          7  the markings are enhanced to bring them to current

          8  standards, which might mean installation of STOP

          9  lines and STOP word messages at crosswalks, or

         10  installation of high visibility crosswalks.  When

         11  signs need to be replaced the replacement signs

         12  utilize sheeting that has better retroreflective

         13  properties.  Similarly, when bike lanes need to be

         14  refurbished, they are enhanced to provide greater

         15  width and protective buffers, whenever feasible.

         16                 During routine investigations to

         17  improve operations of an intersection or block-

         18  front, the safety of motorists and pedestrians is

         19  given highest priority.  This might result in

         20  reducing conflicts between turning vehicles and

         21  pedestrians by the installation of measures to

         22  improve visibility including Leading Pedestrian

         23  Intervals, or daylighting parking controls.  Where

         24  illegal double parking is chronic creating dangerous

         25  movement of vehicles, truck loading zones or other
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          2  changes to parking controls are considered.

          3                 Additionally, each year, DOT selects

          4  locations Citywide for traffic safety improvements.

          5  These locations are selected based on historical

          6  accident data and recommendations from the Police

          7  Department, local elected officials, the public and

          8  other governmental organizations.  Where we focus

          9  our efforts, we conduct an extensive historical

         10  accident review at each location to identify those

         11  factors that contribute to accidents.  We also

         12  concentrate our resources on conducting studies and

         13  making improvements to enhance pedestrian and

         14  vehicle safety along corridors.  Recent examples

         15  include a portion of Atlantic Avenue and Vanderbilt

         16  Avenue both in Brooklyn, Shore Front Parkway in

         17  Queens, Lafayette Avenue in the Bronx, and Hylan

         18  Boulevard in Staten Island.

         19                 Our efforts in this regard are well

         20  documented.  As you may recall, at the April hearing

         21  we handed out our publication Safe Streets NYC:

         22  Traffic Safety Improvements in New York City to the

         23  Transportation Committee Members which provides

         24  examples of our many traffic safety engineering

         25  initiatives.  This document can also be found on
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          2  DOT's website.  Initiatives such as those mentioned

          3  in this document have helped drive down the fatality

          4  and injury numbers here in the City.

          5                 We are also in the midst of a C

          6  change, when it comes to making permanent safety

          7  improvements in our streets.  In particular, we are

          8  for the first time working with DDC to implement

          9  projects specifically for traffic calming work.  Our

         10  Safe Routes to School Program which has already led

         11  to short term improvements around 135 schools, will

         12  include over 775 new neckdowns and 80 new pedestrian

         13  medians and refuge islands.  Similarly the Downtown

         14  Brooklyn Traffic Calming work, with construction

         15  beginning next July, will include an additional 250

         16  neckdowns.  In addition, as part of our Safe Routes

         17  to Transit Program we are improving access to bus

         18  stops through the installation of sidewalks,

         19  improving the safety of waiting bus passengers at

         20  stops located under elevated subways by installing

         21  medians.

         22                 Whenever possible both in our short

         23  term work and in DDC's capital projects program we

         24  are pursuing the creation of complete streets,

         25  streets that take into account the provision of safe
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          2  space for all users.

          3                 We are also piloting new treatments

          4  as a means of enhancing pedestrian safety.  As many

          5  of you know, last year we began testing pedestrian

          6  countdown signals to assess their impact on the

          7  behavior of pedestrians and motorists.  We are now

          8  in the process of implementing a more extensive

          9  follow- up study where we will install a total of

         10  180 pedestrian countdown units that will evaluate 24

         11  signalized intersections along five commercial

         12  corridors, one in each borough.

         13                 In addition, we have begun a Reduced

         14  Speed Zones Pilot Study to evaluate the

         15  effectiveness of reducing speed limits around

         16  schools.  The first phase tested ten locations in

         17  the Bronx, and phase two which is currently in

         18  progress, is testing ten additional Citywide

         19  locations.

         20                 Among our new initiatives, we are

         21  currently developing a Safe Routes for Seniors

         22  Program that will prioritize a number of senior

         23  safety districts around the City.  We have already

         24  begun studying the Coney Island section of Brooklyn

         25  as part of a pilot and expect to have our full
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          2  program developed by the end of the year.

          3                 Lastly, I would like to note that we

          4  have initiated a comprehensive study of all

          5  pedestrian fatalities and serious injuries in the

          6  City over the last five years to give us an even

          7  more thorough understanding of how we can better

          8  protect pedestrians on our streets.  This follows

          9  our bicycle fatality report that we released last

         10  year with the Health Department.  The goal of this

         11  new study is to identify priority locations for

         12  pedestrian safety engineering treatments and to

         13  identify priority treatments by location type.

         14  Through the University Transportation Research

         15  Center, I am pleased to report that we have since

         16  selected the Rudin Center at New York University to

         17  undertake this study.

         18                 All this is not to say that we should

         19  be resting on our laurels.  To the contrary, we must

         20  be constantly developing and implementing new and

         21  more aggressive strategies.  As we move forward with

         22  PlaNYC and preparing for the growth we will continue

         23  to face, Commissioner Sadik-Khan will be

         24  particularly focused on building on our traffic

         25  safety successes and expanding our safety programs.
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          2  Accordingly as part of our development of a new

          3  agency strategic plan, we expect to have agency

          4  safety plans developed by early next year.

          5                 Thank you for inviting us to testify

          6  before you today and we would be happy to answer any

          7  questions that you have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          9  much.  We've been joined by Council Member Bill

         10  DeBlasio from Brooklyn and Council Member Vincent

         11  Ignizio from Staten Island.

         12                 Thanks for your testimony.  It's

         13  always good to hear the testimony of the Department

         14  of Transportation.  I guess, one of the main thrusts

         15  of the argument against Intro 567-A seems to be that

         16  it's a waste of money to conduct a study every time

         17  there is an accident or a fatality on City streets.

         18  That seems to be the main thrust --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes,

         20  that's not the point.  We conduct a study every time

         21  there's a fatality.  I think the point is that --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean I think that

         23  was the point that was made.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, let

         25  me rearticulate what the fundamental point is.  That
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          2  are resources are best focused where you have a

          3  trend of accidents, and I was actually surprised to

          4  hear Councilman Gentile suggest in the beginning

          5  that hearing input from communities isn't useful for

          6  us. Because as many of you have pointed out to us,

          7  and I think we all agree, communities often have a

          8  good sense of what the problems are in their

          9  neighborhoods.  And to suggest that the way to apply

         10  a vast amount of money and resources is to just go

         11  every location where there is an accident would not

         12  be the best way of addressing the traffic safety

         13  problems that undoubtedly exist throughout the City.

         14    I think the point is --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- To

         17  try to focus where the need is greatest and that

         18  need can be established by looking at the data,

         19  which we do in conjunction with the Police

         20  Department, by hearing from communities, and you

         21  can't have a cookie- cutter approach is one point.

         22  The other point that is important to remember is

         23  that where you have one accident doesn't necessarily

         24  indicate that you have a problem.  Where you have

         25  ten accidents may be a better barometer.  So to do
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          2  such a vast number of studies at such a vast cost

          3  wouldn't be the best use of resources.  If you were

          4  to hand us $10 million, $20 million, $30 million we

          5  could find a better way to improve traffic safety.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, well, so it

          7  still does sound like at the end of the day it's a

          8  cost issue.  The Department is estimating that in

          9  order to implement Council Member Gentile's bill it

         10  will cost $40 million a year, maybe $50 million a

         11  year.  I think your testimony said $40 million. --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It said

         13  potentially $40 million.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  As with all the DOT

         15  estimates that seems to be grossly inflated because

         16  the people at the DOT are such efficient

         17  professionals, we're certain that they could do it

         18  for much less than the $40 million.  So that's an

         19  overestimate to begin with.  But at the end of the

         20  day, the Departments argument against this bill

         21  still is the cost issue.  And while the DOT will say

         22  that the DOT wants the direct resources in the best

         23  way possibly to prevent accidents, I think this is

         24  not something new to the DOT that you will hear from

         25  our colleagues on the council.  That it should not
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          2  require ten accidents, fatalities or injuries to be

          3  considered a cause for the DOT to take action.  In

          4  fact, many of us would argue that look, if there's

          5  an accident on a particular intersection or street,

          6  go take a look at it.  We're not saying conduct a

          7  million dollar study for that street or

          8  intersection. Send someone, take a look at it.  And

          9  look at, compare the notes --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We do

         11  all the time, and in fact the suggestion that we

         12  should wait for accidents to happen in the first

         13  place is not necessarily true --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, no, we're not

         15  saying --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- If we

         17  see conditions that are problematic without an

         18  accident having occurred recently, as is often the

         19  case, we'll --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  This bill in way,

         21  this bill in no way suggests that the DOT should not

         22  conduct ongoing due diligence, even in the absence

         23  of any accidents.  But when there is an accident at

         24  a particular location, send someone to go take a

         25  look at it and compare the notes with the NYPD.  The
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          2  idea, that you know, it does not require ten

          3  accidents, when there's an accident just go send

          4  someone and take a look at it.  The other thing is,

          5  to minimize the particular accidents by attributing

          6  them to DWI's or people running red lights, again,

          7  even if there is an accident caused by someone who's

          8  drunk, a drunk driver, even if that accident was

          9  caused by a drunk driver, the DOT should still go

         10  take a look at it because someone who is driving

         11  while under the influence or while drunk may be that

         12  much more susceptible to a particularly dangerous

         13  situation on that street or intersection. Similarly,

         14  someone may run a red light, we see it happen all

         15  the time, people run red lights because of some kind

         16  of circumstance that exists at a particular

         17  intersection, sometimes the trees are blocking the

         18  traffic lights, so someone should go out there, take

         19  a look to make sure that there are no tree limbs or

         20  tree leaves blocking the lights, or maybe the way

         21  the sun is shining and late in the afternoon is

         22  rendering the traffic light less visible to people,

         23  there are all sorts of different reasons why traffic

         24  accidents happen, and all that Council Member

         25  Gentile's bill says is send someone out there and go
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          2  take a look at it.  And it would that much more

          3  satisfying for us if we could have this discussion

          4  and not have the DOT come to us and essentially say

          5  that the DOT doesn't want to do this because it will

          6  cost a lot of money and then to give us an inflated

          7  budgetary number.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But to

          9  ignore the cost of what you're proposing would be

         10  irresponsible.  And this is a piece of proposed

         11  legislation that has enormous cost, that's the

         12  reality.  I mean in an ideal world, we would be able

         13  to snap our fingers, look at every single

         14  intersection in the City, and snap our fingers and

         15  make improvements to them.  That would be ideal.

         16  But, again, if you were to give us a large sum of

         17  money, we could find a better way to focus our

         18  resources where the need is greatest, and this bill

         19  doesn't do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, if that's the

         21  case, you see, this is not something new that this

         22  Committee hears from the Department of

         23  Transportation, it's always we don't want to support

         24  this bill, or we don't want to do what this bill

         25  calls us to do because it will cost money.  It would
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          2  be so much more preferable if the DOT could come to

          3  this Committee and say, this is something that we

          4  probably should look at, but right now our budgetary

          5  resources don't allow us to do this level of due

          6  diligence.  And so when it comes budget time, we in

          7  the Council will then prioritize those kinds of

          8  needs and we will have in our discussions the DOT is

          9  saying that they need more money to keep our

         10  pedestrians safe and then we will take the actions

         11  and if we can't come up with the resources then we

         12  are not doing our job.  But every time the DOT

         13  opposes a bill, the DOT comes and says, well it's

         14  not money worth spending.  That's exactly what

         15  you're saying to us and we reject that argument once

         16  again outright.  You try telling that to the mothers

         17  and the parents of kids and the relatives of family

         18  members who are injured and in some cases killed,

         19  and we can't even get the City to go take a look at

         20  that location when someone has been fatally injured

         21  or just seriously injured.  It is a difficult

         22  situation for any elected official to have to face

         23  off constituents and can't even get someone to go

         24  take a look at the location to see if maybe there's

         25  a traffic light needed, a stop sign needed, some
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          2  kind of modification --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We look

          4  at locations all the time and we would always love

          5  to get resources from whatever source possible to do

          6  even more good work.  But we're suggesting that

          7  there are better ways to focus the resources in

          8  terms of improving traffic safety.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think this bill

         10  will suggest that when there's a serious accident or

         11  fatality that occurs, someone has to go take a look

         12  to see if there's any changes that could be

         13  necessary, even if that intersection or street has

         14  had no accident history.

         15                 Let me ask you, you know, the DOT,

         16  and we understand this, there's a regular routine

         17  inspection of all the streets in the City.  How long

         18  does that cycle take before a particular location is

         19  looked at?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Mr.

         21  Chairman, let me just add to Deputy Woloch's answer.

         22    We and the Police Department look at every

         23  location where a fatal accident occurs.  And so

         24  fortunately the number of fatal accidents have

         25  decreased dramatically over the years, but when
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          2  there is a fatal collision we look at every

          3  intersection where that occurs.  There are, I think

          4  David's numbers indicated where the numbers were,

          5  but last year there were 321 fatal accidents, 167 of

          6  them involved pedestrians. In previous years, that

          7  321 is the second lowest number ever recorded in the

          8  City of New York since we started keeping these

          9  records.  Certainly the number of pedestrian

         10  fatalities is also the second lowest recorded.  Last

         11  year, the year before, there was 156 pedestrian

         12  fatalities and 321, same number of total collisions

         13  that resulted in fatalities.  The Police Department

         14  and the Department of Transportation uses it

         15  resources to investigate every location where a

         16  fatality occurs.  Our focuses are somewhat

         17  different.  The Police Department, through their

         18  Accident Investigation Squad looks at different

         19  factors, speeding might be a factor that they look

         20  at, other conditions that might have violated the

         21  law.  Our focus is on the roadway conditions whether

         22  the traffic control devices are sufficient, and if

         23  they're there, if they're visible.  Answering the

         24  questions, the type of questions that you raise, was

         25  there something blocking the traffic control device
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          2  that contributed to the location, was there

          3  something inappropriate with what happens in the

          4  Department of Transportation's universe that created

          5  a condition that made it less safe than other

          6  intersections?  And so in the fatal cases we do

          7  exactly what this bill envisions.  Not all of these

          8  investigations can be completed within 60 days that

          9  the bill envisions, and that's something else that

         10  Deputy Commissioner Woloch's testimony referred to

         11  because some locations and some conditions will be

         12  much more complex than others and might require

         13  different types of intervention and different types

         14  of data collection in order to do that intervention.

         15    The other categories that the bill envisions to

         16  raise that number from 300 to 400 locations that

         17  we've been doing consistently through my tenure in

         18  the Department of Transportation.  We've done as

         19  many as 700 investigations that we've had to

         20  investigate every year.  And certainly when the

         21  numbers are that high --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So my question is

         23  how long does it take?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well

         25  it would depend on --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  A routine

          3  inspection.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  These

          5  aren't routine inspections.  These are inspections

          6  at locations where fatalities have occurred and

          7  they're not routine inspections. --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I know, but I'm

          9  asking --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  A

         11  routine inspection --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  My question, you

         13  know we're trying to ask the questions here to get

         14  the information --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The question is

         17  relevant.  The question is how much time elapses in

         18  between routine inspections on average?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  These

         20   --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is it like within

         22  two years all the streets are inspected --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No,

         24  no.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Or does it take
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          2  20 years before all the streets are inspected again?

          3

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          5  part of what's confusing is that there's a

          6  suggestion that there is a single set of DOT

          7  inspectors that go from location to location and

          8  assess everything --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, there is no

         10  confusion.  That's why I asked you the average.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But

         12  there are a lot of different pieces of our

         13  infrastructure on the street.  For instance, we have

         14   --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  See, but --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         17  Councilman, please just let me finish.  We have

         18  inspectors who rate the quality of the streets and

         19  help us figure out where we should be repaving in

         20  the next year, which has an impact on safety.  There

         21  are other people who do work in the Department that

         22  relates to street geometry --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right, we

         24  understand that.  We understand that there's

         25  different kinds of inspections. Nonetheless, the
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          2  goal here is not to get a precise number of years or

          3  months or years and months that elapse between

          4  inspections of various types.  But how long does it

          5  take for someone from the Department of

          6  Transportation to inspect the geometry of a site?

          7  How frequent is the inspection of the pavement

          8  conditions or any other conditions?  I would surmise

          9  that it takes years on average between all of these

         10  kinds of inspections and I would not fault the

         11  Department of Transportation for taking years in

         12  between these kinds of inspections.  But our point

         13  simply is, if there's an accident, even if it's not

         14  a fatality, go take a look at it. What's the big

         15  deal?  I mean, this is just my experience, I've had

         16  a lot of serious accidents in my District.  I've had

         17  a teenage boy who was a star student who lost a leg

         18  because there was an accident, and I couldn't even

         19  get someone to go out there and just inspect the

         20  safety and to assess if there were any requirements

         21  or changes that were necessary in order to make that

         22  intersection safer.  And how do I say that to the

         23  mother?  The mother is saying, you know I can't

         24  believe this happened to my son, can we at least do

         25  something, take a look at it to see what changes can
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          2  be made so that this doesn't happen to another kid,

          3  or another mother doesn't have to go through this

          4  kind of grief.  The kid was not killed so that makes

          5  it okay?  It doesn't make it okay.  We should still

          6  have sent someone out there to at least be able to

          7  tell the mother and that high school community, that

          8  look, we took a look at it, this is a very

          9  unfortunate near tragic accident, but you know,

         10  accidents happen and there's nothing that we can

         11  figure out additional to make that intersection

         12  safer.  So I don't think it's unreasonable to ask

         13  the DOT to go out there and accelerate the schedule

         14  for a particular location, even if it's not a

         15  fatality.  I have more, but let me defer to Council

         16  Member Vincent Gentile.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         18  Chairman Liu. I can't let the impression continue on

         19  the record that this bill, as Commissioner Woloch

         20  testified, suggests in any way that community groups

         21  and civic groups would have no role or lesser of a

         22  role in promoting pedestrian and traffic safety.

         23  That is absolutely, and I think you know that by

         24  reading this bill, that that is not the case.

         25  Frankly, the situation that Councilman Liu just
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          2  talked about where there is one accident where you

          3  really should go out and look at something that

          4  happened would not necessarily come under this bill

          5  if it were not a pedestrian accident and in fact

          6  were not three in a sixty day period.  So, a

          7  situation of that type where there's an accident

          8  where Councilman Liu, or any one of us, would have

          9  to talk to constituents or parents or family, we

         10  would still have to petition you to look at that

         11  situation and we'd certainly rely on our civic and

         12  local groups to continue that pressure to look at

         13  dangerous situations which would not come under the

         14  purview of this bill.  So to suggest that this bill

         15  does away with any input from community or civic

         16  groups is just disingenuous because it doesn't do

         17  that.  Certainly I can't tell you how many time, how

         18  many times we have heard, all of us have heard, from

         19  civic and community groups the refrain that, what

         20  are they waiting for?  Are they waiting for someone

         21  to be killed before they do something at this

         22  location?  And frankly, if we were cutting out local

         23  pressure in local community groups they wouldn't be

         24  in this room today helping and supporting this bill

         25  and testifying on this bill.  The fact is that you

                                                            42

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  know and I know sometimes the pressure from elected

          3  officials and community groups get you to move.

          4  Sometimes it doesn't get you to move.  And what this

          5  bill does is require you to move in certain

          6  situations and that's what this bill does.  It

          7  requires you to move and certainly the pressure from

          8  the groups will still be there.  But this bill

          9  codifies those situations where you have to move.

         10  So, I think it really is disingenuous to say that it

         11  cuts out community and civic groups by passing a

         12  bill of this type.

         13                 Let me just continue here, you

         14  indicated, Commissioner, that you're doing a

         15  comprehensive study of all pedestrian fatalities and

         16  serious injuries in the City over the last five

         17  years.  And yet, even with this comprehensive study

         18  the statistics show that pedestrian fatalities have

         19  increased from 2005 to 2006, pedestrian accidents I

         20  should say, from 2005 to 2006.  And you have even

         21  classified pedestrians as the largest at- risk group

         22  with respect to traffic fatalities.  So, given your

         23  own statistics, given your own classifications and

         24  the fact that you have a comprehensive study but the

         25  numbers are going up, it befuddles me to hear you
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          2  say that requiring these types of investigations

          3  where there's a pedestrian involved in an accident

          4  is something you can't do.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right, a

          6  few points. First of all, the numbers are not going

          7  up the numbers are going down. They're going down

          8  whether you look at fatalities, whether you look at

          9  all injuries, whether you look at serious injuries.

         10  And, again, what is particularly remarkable is that

         11  even though numbers have fallen in other large

         12  cities throughout the country, the rate of

         13  improvement that we've seen is much larger than

         14  every other large American City.  So something good

         15  here has been happening over the past decade that

         16  hasn't been happening in other places.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The study that you

         18  referred to, I think, gets at our preferred

         19  approach.  What the study will do is hone in looking

         20  at the whole universe of where there have been

         21  pedestrian fatalities and injuries and figure out

         22  where the most critical locations are, and I think

         23  the fundamental point, looking at the whole tells

         24  you a lot more about what's happening out there and

         25  allows us to focus our resources where they're going
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          2  to be most useful.  And, again, I think our goal is

          3  very similar.  I think your goal in this legislation

          4  is the same as what we're trying to do with this

          5  study.  Our suggestion is that this study will get

          6  us all closer to where we want to be.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  And,

          8  again, if I could add, when Deputy Commissioner

          9  Woloch talks about the accident rates going down and

         10  Council Member when you talk about the rate going up

         11  from '05 to '06, you're comparing the best year,

         12   '05, in the last three years we've achieved our

         13  best success in terms of reducing pedestrian

         14  fatalities, pedestrian injuries and severe

         15  pedestrian injuries.  Lower than any of the ten or

         16  fifteen years that have preceded it, and they are

         17  all very close.  The numbers on all of those three

         18  years are very close.  Pedestrian fatalities in '04

         19  was 157, in '05 it was 156, in '06 it was 167.

         20  Injuries similarly are very closely grouped.

         21  Previously the years before that were ten or fifteen

         22  percent higher in all of those categories. And so

         23  the trends that we're talking about, the consistent

         24  reduction in collisions which cause fatalities and

         25  injuries have gone down.  And so what remains to be
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          2  done is to continue working on driving those numbers

          3  down and we believe getting a better understanding

          4  of the cause or the factors which go into pedestrian

          5  injuries and pedestrian fatalities.  Because it is

          6  always the roads fault, it is not always the fault

          7  of the condition, but there is other things that

          8  need to be addressed, be it enforcement issues

          9  because of the engineering, we believe we're doing a

         10  good job on. But education needs to improve,

         11  enforcement needs to improve, or the factors

         12  affecting the accidents or causing the accident need

         13  to be directed, enforcement needs to be directed

         14  against those conditions and engineering continues

         15  to need to be improved.  We need, however, to focus

         16  the resources we're given at locations that we

         17  believe will give us the best success in driving

         18  those numbers down.  And as Deputy Commissioner

         19  Woloch mentioned in his testimony, it is not always

         20  the location where there is an accident that is the

         21  location where we can best intervene or the accident

         22  of the type that we're talking about.

         23                 So, answering some of the other

         24  questions, how long it takes to do studies, at the

         25  fatal locations we complete about 30 investigations
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          2  a month given the staff that we have.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Mr.

          4  Primeggia, you just made the argument that I think

          5  Councilman Liu was making and in contradiction to

          6  the cost estimates that you put in your testimony,

          7  Commissioner, that you're estimating the number of

          8  investigations you would have to do under this bill

          9  and that each investigation would be a full blown

         10  investigation that would cost half a million

         11  dollars, whatever it might be, but we just hear

         12  today, right now from Michael Primeggia, a whole

         13  list of reasons that could be given as to why it's

         14  not a traffic issue for certain --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         16  Absolutely --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  That did not

         18  cost what you just said, Mr. Primeggia, that did not

         19  cost a lot of money.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No,

         21  but I will tell you that studying 13,000 locations,

         22  as your bill envisions, will cost the amount of

         23  money, not inflated cost as the Chair suggested, but

         24  will cost that amount of money to study within the

         25  timeframes that this bill envisions.  You're talking
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          2  about 13,000 locations that would have to be studied

          3  if this bill were to pass.  We currently study, as I

          4  mentioned, every fatal location.  We are embarking

          5  on a study to give us a better sense of what

          6  contributes to the problem between pedestrian

          7  safety, where the problems exist, and what are the

          8  contributing factors by evaluating data, not only of

          9  fatalities but of serious injuries involving the

         10  pedestrians. The more work, the more locations that

         11  you expect us to study in the shortest period of

         12  time will add to the volume.  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Do you --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  And

         15  we are not sure, again as Deputy Commissioner Woloch

         16  mentioned in his testimony, that even if you

         17  provided that amount of resources that it should all

         18  be spent in the way that this bill envisions.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Do yo do

         20  studies, automatic studies, for Type A injuries?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No,

         22  we don't.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  You do not.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We do

         25  not.  We do not, --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So,

          3  pedestrians who are injured --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

          5  We do not automatically --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  -- But not

          7  killed, there is not --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We do

          9  not --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  --

         11  Necessarily a study that goes on.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We do

         13  not automatically visit the location of every

         14  serious injury for pedestrians.  We do not have the

         15  resources to do that.  That's correct.  We do have

         16  resources and we have devoted resources to study

         17  every fatal location, every location where a fatal

         18  accident occurs, a fatal collision occurs, be it a

         19  collision between people in the vehicle or

         20  collisions involving pedestrians or non- motorized

         21  traffic.  But we do not have the resources to study

         22  every location where there is a serious injury.

         23  It's not to say that we don't go out and study

         24  locations where serious injuries have occurred --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Because --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

          3  do, we do at your request, the request of members of

          4  this body and others, we do study about 2,000

          5  locations a year where you have asked us to look at

          6  whether the signal timing is adequate or the

          7  controls are adequate or if the controls need to be

          8  improved, or at locations where there are sufficient

          9  controls, --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Mr.

         11  Primeggia --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

         13  Whether or not we need other phases, other things

         14  necessary or interventions and we do about 2,000 --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I understand

         16   --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  -- Of

         18  those a year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I

         20  understand, but you know and I know --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  The

         22  record --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  -- That

         24  takes a great deal of pressure both from the

         25  community, elected officials, and several different
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          2  incidents for action to be taken on a particular, or

          3  at least an investigation --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We,

          5  every year we do about 2,000 of these types of

          6  studies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You really like

          9  that number, don't you?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well

         11   --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You say that

         13  number, first of all --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  -- I

         15  can't help it if that's the number that we do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well that's true,

         17  but you seem to make it sound as you think it's too

         18  high a number.  I mean, it's a big City, even the

         19  DOT has a humongous budget, so what does 2,000

         20  really mean?  If it has to be done, it has to be

         21  done.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         23  Absolutely, and we have devoted the resources that

         24  you've given us, the Administration has given us --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What we're saying
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          2   --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

          4  And we've devoted them towards that factor.  Those

          5  studies that we do --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, what many of

          7  us are saying-

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

          9  Sixty days --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- What many of us

         11  are saying is that, well I won't even speak for

         12  anybody, I find it shocking that even Type A, what

         13  you call Type A serious injuries do not result in

         14  some kind of examination or inspection of that

         15  location.  I find that horrific and I would never be

         16  able to face a constituent and say to a mother whose

         17  son has just lost his leg that since your son didn't

         18  get killed, the City's not going to be able to come

         19  out and look at that location.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Now,

         21  Councilman, you know that's not true, but I cannot

         22  tell you that every location is studied.  Some of

         23  those certainly are within the 2,000 that are

         24  studied as places where serious injuries have

         25  occurred, but in answer of the question, does every

                                                            52

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  location where a serious injury occur, does a study

          3  automatically take place, the answer to that is no.

          4                 It's not to say that no location gets

          5  studied where a serious injury occurs.  You've asked

          6  us, you, yourself, have asked us to look at

          7  locations where serious injuries have occurred and

          8  we have devoted the resources to do that.  And it's

          9  not just --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And in other cases,

         11  and in other cases --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

         13  Because you're the Chair of the Transportation

         14  Committee that we do it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- The DOT has not

         16  which is why Council Member Gentile is introducing

         17  this bill.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right, let me

         21  turn the floor back over to Councilman Gentile.  I

         22  didn't mean to --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Councilman,

         24  in the interest of time I have a few more questions

         25  and then I'll send it back.
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          2                 All right, let me move on at this

          3  point because I think we've both made our points

          4  here.

          5                 In terms of school zones, what do you

          6  consider a school zone, and are there different

          7  rules as to data collection or inspections for

          8  intersections or incidents that have happened with

          9  whatever you define as a school zone?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As we've

         11  talked about previously and was mentioned in the

         12  testimony, one of the traffic safety programs that

         13  we've been most focused on has is our Safe Routes to

         14  School Program.  And the idea was to take the

         15  schools that have the highest accident histories

         16  where the need seems greatest and to focus our

         17  efforts on those schools.  We looked at all 1,400

         18  public, private parochial schools in the City.  We

         19  took 135 with the highest accident histories and we

         20  came up with traffic safety plans for all those 135.

         21    We made all the short term improvements at those

         22  135 schools and for most of them we have capital

         23  plans, which represents probably one of the largest

         24  traffic calming undertakings in the country.  And we

         25  started working with the Department of Design and
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          2  Construction to implement those capital

          3  improvements. --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But are the

          5  school zones the immediate intersections around the

          6  school?  Or are they the actual routes, the most

          7  common routes to the school?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It's the

          9  area right around the school.  I think about three

         10  blocks radius around the schools.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Every

         12  school has a traffic safety map, all 1,400 of them,

         13  and the evaluation at the 135 schools that Deputy

         14  Commissioner Woloch mentioned looked at, all those

         15  intersections identified on that traffic safety map.

         16  Most of them, as David indicates or within a three

         17  or four block radius, but some go further than that.

         18                 I'll add, not only did this detail

         19  work get done at the schools with the greatest

         20  accident history, but the traffic controls at all

         21  1,400 schools were evaluated to make sure that they

         22  were appropriate.  That was completed, as well as a

         23  signing of every school crosswalk, both with the new

         24  standards that the federal manual introduced several

         25  years ago requiring a different type of sign, more

                                                            55

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  visible, and word messages and --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I guess our

          4  inquiry at this point, our inquiry at this point

          5  though, do you treat incidents, traffic accidents

          6  either with cars or with pedestrians in those school

          7  zones differently?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          9  the fundamental point is that we treat school zones

         10  differently, period.  And many of the places where

         11  we've made improvements around schools are locations

         12  where there weren't necessarily accidents. The idea

         13  is that these are really special havens around

         14  schools and we're not going to wait for accidents to

         15  happen around them.  What we want to do is focus our

         16  resources around the schools that generally have had

         17  the highest accident histories and we're going to

         18  keep doing more as we go forward but we're not only

         19  making improvements at the particular locations

         20  where there have been many accidents, but we've

         21  taken a holistic approach to those school zones and

         22  made improvements throughout.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But not

         24  necessarily, Commissioner that should an accident,

         25  pedestrian or otherwise happen, you would not
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          2  automatically do a review or an investigation of

          3  that incident.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I mean,

          5  basically the path that we're going down is that we

          6  want to review every area around every school.  Now,

          7  again, we don't have unlimited resources, we want to

          8  do the job, we want to do it right, we started with

          9  about ten percent of the schools.  We're in the

         10  process of moving on to the next 135.  We're not

         11  waiting for all the work for the first 135 to be

         12  finished, we're moving forward with the next 135 --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  You're not

         14  collecting any data.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We're

         16  also doing 40 high schools, and in the years to come

         17  we're going to continue to do more and more schools.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But you're

         19  not collecting any specific data about accidents or

         20  fatalities around schools.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We've

         22  collected lots of data about accidents around

         23  schools.  We have data about every school and that's

         24  what helped us prioritize where to start for those

         25  135 that we looked at initially, we looked at the
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          2  data in a very detailed way.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Let me ask

          4  you then, just to finish up here, you did not

          5  comment about the aspect of the bill that would

          6  require the automatic communication from the NYPD to

          7  the DOT concerning the accident reports that are

          8  collected.  My understanding is now that you have to

          9  request the reports from the State DMV or the State

         10  DOT.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We get

         12  accident reports from the Police Department all the

         13  time.  When we ask for them for any studies we're

         14  doing, we get them.  And I think part of the success

         15  over the past decade has been we have a good

         16  collaborate effort with the Police Department.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well, you

         18  know, part of this came from a conversation I had

         19  with the former Commissioner, who indicated to me,

         20  Commissioner Weinshall, that one of the problems

         21  that the DOT has on a continuing basis is getting

         22  information on a timely basis from NYPD and that

         23  usually has to go through the State DOT or the State

         24  DMV.  So, if that is what she is telling me, are you

         25  now saying that that's no longer the case?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No,

          3  she's not here, I can't speak for her, but I think

          4  this is what she was getting at. Over the years

          5  there has been a lag in terms of the information

          6  that gets sent by the Police Department to the State

          7  to get incorporated into their very robust accident

          8  data system, and the problem for us, and it was much

          9  more pronounced in the past, was because of that

         10  lag, when we used the State system, and it's a very

         11  good system, except for the fact that the data was

         12  often not up to date.  Over the past year or so, and

         13  I'm not sure when your conversation with the

         14  previous Commissioner was, the State actually has

         15  gotten much better and much quicker at getting the

         16  more recent data into its system.  So I think that's

         17  the point that she was referring to.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well it

         19  seems to me that if we have two City agencies that

         20  covered the same concern, and that's traffic safety,

         21  certainly one of them responding to traffic

         22  accidents, any system that facilitates and requires

         23  a communication can't be a bad thing, can be only a

         24  good thing in regard particularly to safety issues

         25  that we're talking about.
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          2                 Mr. Chairman, I'm going to send it

          3  back to you but just indicate that looking over the

          4  Commissioner's testimony, most of what he is saying

          5  is that when they look at locations they bring it up

          6  to standards.  In fact what we're saying is that we

          7  need to have some vision as to what is a safety

          8  issue here, not just bringing signs and markings up

          9  to standards.  And that's, I think, part of what

         10  we're trying to require through this bill.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         12  Member Gentile. We've been joined by Council Member

         13  Jessica Lappin of Manhattan, and Council Member

         14  James Sanders from Queens.

         15                 Chairperson Brewer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         17  Picking up on Council Member Gentile, what is the

         18  process for the Police Department's records going to

         19  Albany and coming back to you, or can you get them

         20  directly from PD while they concurrently participate

         21  in that other process?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, I

         23  think there are two different pieces to this.  There

         24  is actually getting actual accident reports and then

         25  there is getting information from the State database
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          2  in its entirety.  So we don't wait to get accident

          3  reports when we need them from the Police

          4  Department.  We don't have to wait for them to send

          5  information to Albany and for that to be processed.

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  How do you, does

          8  it come in paper or does it come online?  How do you

          9  actually get those Police Department Reports,

         10  Accident --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         12  Accident Reports?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Correct.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We get

         15  on paper.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, and from

         17  Albany it would come online when it is uploaded?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It's not

         19  the full accident report, it's a database that codes

         20  particular pieces of information from those accident

         21  reports.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, second

         23  question I have, I have experienced this right in

         24  front of our Office, District Office, somebody was

         25  killed and it was a fairly well known actor in the
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          2  neighborhood, and I know that obviously Police were

          3  there first, then we of course with neighborhood

          4  outrage asked that the street lights be changed and

          5  turn signals and so on, and to the credit of DOT it

          6  got done and now of course there is new concern that

          7  we want a different kind of signal.  Ongoing

          8  discussion.  How do you prioritize?  Do you go back

          9  where there has been an accident?  Do you re-

         10  evaluate those particular locations?  You talk about

         11  2,000 but how do you prioritize which ones you're

         12  going to look at even without the discussion of the

         13  Council Member's bill?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  If a

         15  fatality occurs at a location, we, as was in the one

         16  that you mentioned, that automatically triggers an

         17  investigation to determine what the conditions were

         18  in the DOT universe, were all the signs proper and

         19  visible, were all the controls appropriate, were

         20  there some deficiencies in the DOT environment that

         21  may have contributed to the accident?  We do that.

         22  We look at, in this particular incidence, we get

         23  information from yourself, the community, and geared

         24  evaluation toward some of the issues that you were

         25  most interested in.
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          2                 Of the 2,000 locations that we study,

          3  about 1,200 or 1,300 of them are looking at the

          4  appropriateness of the controls. The others are

          5  locations where controls already exist, and we've

          6  been asked to evaluate whether or not there could be

          7  some enhancements to those controls, different

          8  phasing, different type of exclusive phases, turn

          9  signals, things of that nature.  In addition, we

         10  look at some of these locations internally based on

         11  other conditions that we evaluate as part of our

         12  routine work that we do.  People are evaluated in a

         13  particular neighborhood or corridor may look at how

         14  the controls operate and whether or not they're

         15  still best suited for the environment that we have

         16  today. Just an example, a corridor in Brooklyn,

         17  there had been a serious of concerns about vehicles

         18  speeding on that corridor and we were asked to look

         19  at what could be done.  First, was it true, and if

         20  it's true what could be done to do that, aside from

         21  the enforcement measures.  And so that required a

         22  series of evaluations of what was going on above

         23  that, and individual intersections in the corridor.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I don't want to

         25  belabor the point, I know time is of the essence,
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          2  but can the Police Department, A) they should have

          3  their records online but that's a different story,

          4  how can they help get this 13,000, obviously they

          5  are not traffic experts but they're on- the- street

          6  experts?  How can they work with you to assist in

          7  this effort when there is need for more resources?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  They

          9  are, absolutely, an important part of the process,

         10  and in fact, we work with them all the time.  So,

         11  for instance, as you know, the Police Department has

         12  something called Traffic Stat which is modeled on

         13  ComStat, which DOT participates in.  And it's a

         14  mechanism for particular borough commands and

         15  precincts to share their thoughts and their insights

         16  and their recommendations with DOT, many of which we

         17  act on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         21  much, Chairperson Brewer.

         22                 Okay, I think we should work towards

         23  some kind of resolution on this bill because I think

         24  the cost issue alone cannot justify not doing more

         25  to inspect these locations where serious accidents
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          2  have occurred.

          3                 Getting back to the earlier part of

          4  the testimony, I thought it was great news that the

          5  DOT actually intends to do this already.  That is,

          6  to post online the parking restrictions of City

          7  blocks and streets by block.  Is what you're talking

          8  about, this SIM System, is that to put up

          9  information on a block by block basis?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         11  system is actually more than that.  I mean we have

         12  1.4 million signs in the City and also a large

         13  amount of markings on the street.  This is a system,

         14  not to just make that information available, but to

         15  actually help us manage that huge inventory --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- So

         18  there's a number of different purposes to it.  But

         19  this is one of the things that we'll be able to do

         20  with this new system and we're looking forward to

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right,

         23  certainly we don't begrudge the DOT's initiative to

         24  better manage the way parking restrictions are

         25  imposed throughout the City.  The issue at hand is
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          2  how that gets communicated to the general public and

          3  as you know, and we certainly know, there are many

          4  parts of the City where the restrictions are very

          5  difficult to understand.  Now, that's no necessarily

          6  solvable by just putting that information online,

          7  although it will help people better understand in

          8  advance where they are going.  But there are many

          9  instances where temporary restrictions are put in

         10  place and that seems to be a significant source of

         11  parking summonses that people are receiving.

         12  Temporary restrictions, people don't understand what

         13  the temporary restrictions are.  I think it's a

         14  matter of not only public communications, but also

         15  agency accountability that we put restrictions up

         16  online on a near real- time basis.  So if people are

         17  getting violations, 1) they kind of understand what

         18  the restrictions really are on that block, and 2) if

         19  there are parking restrictions that are imposed on a

         20  temporary basis it's not the agents that are being

         21  confused and thus writing erroneous tickets. So,

         22  it's a question of communicating to the public, as

         23  well as keeping the City accountable for the various

         24  restrictions that there are.

         25                 What's the timeframe for completing
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          2  the SIMS?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I

          4  said in the testimony, we expect the contract to be

          5  in place in February and it will take 18 months from

          6  that point to get the system in place.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right, the SIMS

          8  system is that, it says in your testimony once

          9  that's completed, it will then allow DOT to better

         10  manage it.  It will also enable DOT to optimize the

         11  operations of keeping track of installation

         12  requests, and then later on in your testimony it

         13  says, one of the benefits is that it will allow for

         14  sign information to be made available through the

         15  website.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, is that with --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That's

         19  going to part of the --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Doesn't sound

         21  like it's with --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That's

         23  going to be part of the project.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So that's within

         25  the 18 months?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes,

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So we're looking at

          5  a timeframe of something like August of 2009?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That

          7  sounds about right, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so August

          9  2009, we look forward to be able to go online and

         10  figuring out what the restrictions are for the areas

         11  where people are driving to.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I have a quick

         13  question about that.  Did that also include the

         14  info, not necessarily for the public but for you so

         15  that BRT or other bus lanes can be maneuvered by the

         16  traffic signals, or is that a different system?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  There's

         18  going to be a host of information related to any

         19  sign that's in the City, not just parking signs.

         20  This particular system will not have information

         21  about traffic signals.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  All right, so

         23  it's a completely different system.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         25  Correct, this will allow us to keep better track of
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          2  our signs and markings.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And how about

          4  the Office of Film, will they be coordinated with

          5  you?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well,

          7  the Film Office doesn't, if we're talking about the

          8  posting of paper signs-

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Oh yes we are.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         11  That's not something that our system will track.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  But it is

         13  something that down the line with technology could

         14  in fact be incorporated.  Something to think about.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         16  Certainly something to think about.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, I would

         18  actually strongly encourage the DOT to not just

         19  think about it but to do it.  Because the fact is,

         20  there's got to be some kind of process, even for

         21  temporary restrictions that last a day, or a few

         22  days, there's got to be some way to centralize that

         23  information.  A lot of people get parking tickets

         24  because of these temporary restrictions.  That's not

         25  right.  And if there's no accountability that makes
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          2  it even more wrong.  So, there's a process, whether

          3  people are making films or the Community Board is

          4  having a street fest, or there's a construction

          5  project happening.  There are all sorts of reasons

          6  why temporary parking restrictions are in place and

          7  these temporary parking restrictions are becoming

          8  more and more common place. There's got to be some

          9  kind of accountability that will be built into the

         10  system and put online so people can understand them,

         11  people can track them and the City cannot continue

         12  to give out these parking tickets that people have

         13  no idea of where they are coming from.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         15  Councilman, I will say that SIMS will definitely

         16  take care of the temporary signs dealing with

         17  construction.  Because those are signs that our

         18  contractors, or contractors that have to come to us,

         19  get permission to do.  So SIMS will address the

         20  temporary nature of construction signs.  Those are

         21  typically not one day, or just a small number of

         22  days, --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, they last --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  --

         25  They're a longer period and SIMS will definitely
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          2  deal with that universe.  It's the other universe

          3  Council Member Brewer mentioned, the Film Office in

          4  particular, where the posted paper signs gets done

          5  through the Film Office or the Police Unit are so

          6  into the Film Office that we have to give some

          7  serious thought to it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I mean it's

          9  something to think about though because the other

         10  issue is for the cranes that come into my District

         11  on a Saturday, usually they get their permit
         12  notification, they apply on Tuesday or they get it

         13  on Thursday, believe me, I know, because I have to

         14  deal with it every Saturday. So, I mean that kind of

         15  thing goes quickly.  It just seems to me that you

         16  could coordinate with some of these other agencies,

         17  CAU and so one that do even more, this lead time.

         18  It's not a --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  The

         20  units, or the issues like the one you just mention

         21  that have to come to DOT for permits to use the

         22  streets, that will certainly be included.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Right.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  It is

         25  the others that don't necessarily have to come to
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          2  DOT for permits to do that-

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We could

          4  coordinate it.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

          6  will certainly evaluate that and look into that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And I'm certain

          8  we could come up with another longer list of other

          9  agencies.  But, anyway, my other question is, what

         10  is the budget for the Rudin Centers' study of the

         11  pedestrian challenges.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I

         13  don't recall, hold on one second.  Three hundred and

         14  fifty thousand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Again, I will go

         18  further then Council Member Gale Brewer.  I know

         19  that she, well, it's got to be more than just

         20  evaluated.  It has to be done.  And again, it's a

         21  question of accountability in municipal government.

         22  Even if it's for a day, people are, especially if

         23  it's for a day.  People just don't know and often

         24  times they are not notified properly.  So, it's a

         25  question of accountability on the part of government
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          2  to put those restrictions, however temporary they

          3  may be, online so there is some trail of

          4  accountability.  And if it's not something that's

          5  enacted by the DOT but by agencies such as the

          6  Office of Film Production or whatever the name,

          7  Office of Film and Television. There's got to be a

          8  process that gets to the DOT that gets on the

          9  website because ultimately what I'd like to see is a

         10  full coordination between DOT, not just

         11  communicating these restrictions to the public

         12  online, but coordination with the NYPD and

         13  ultimately the Department of Finance.  So that at

         14  any given location erroneous parking tickets cannot

         15  be issued any longer.  By putting the address into

         16  the hand held unit that the agents are now carrying

         17  and within two years, which is the timeframe of your

         18  implementation, I'm sure all the agents will have a

         19  hand held devices, they will no longer be able to

         20  issue tickets that simply do not apply to a

         21  location.  We get complaints about that all the

         22  time.  There's a change in the parking restrictions

         23  for a particular block or location, people don't

         24  understand it, or maybe some of the kinds of

         25  temporary restrictions have now been lifted and yet
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          2  the agent doesn't understand that, or in the worst

          3  case the agent ignores the fact that the temporary

          4  restrictions have been lifted.  And yet they are

          5  still able to write a ticket that simply does not

          6  apply.  It forces the resident to go through this

          7  ridiculous adjudication process which in many cases

          8  they simply through up their hands in the air and

          9  pay the ticket anyway.  So it's a question of

         10  communications at the first level, but ultimately

         11  it's a question of municipal accountability.  So I

         12  hope that the DOT will not just look at it and not

         13  just evaluate it, but actually do it because I think

         14  it's the right thing to do and, you know, we would

         15  hate to introduce another bill that the DOT may not

         16  find necessary.

         17                 With that, I want to thank

         18  Commissioner Woloch and Commissioner Primeggia and

         19  all of your great people at the DOT.  We never have

         20  any doubt in this Committee that the professionals

         21  and all of you at DOT do the utmost work to keep

         22  people in New York City safe.  Of course there are

         23  going to be differences of opinion and differences

         24  in what we think are priorities, and that's why we

         25  have to hold these hearings.  In all the areas that
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          2  we agree with you, there is no need to have a

          3  hearing.  So by nature, we would hold a hearing when

          4  there is something that we don't agree with.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I also want to

          6  thank you and thank you for your commitment to

          7  pedestrian safety which I know is paramount.  I

          8  think that it's good to have the discussions because

          9  there is always room for improvement and certainly I

         10  appreciate the work you're doing on the technology

         11  fund.  I think the main issue is to try to

         12  coordinate the agencies, unfortunately, not you, but

         13  we heard a lot of discussion this morning between

         14  Buildings and Fire Department and so we know that

         15  there is a coordination issue and we look forward to

         16  working with you on it.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Thank

         19  you, Mr. Chair, and I thank the Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         21                 Now we would like to invite Jenifer

         22  Clapp to the witness table on behalf of Manhattan

         23  Borough President Scott Stringer, to be followed by

         24  a panel consisting of Brooke DuBose and Noah Budnick

         25  from Transportation Alternatives.
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          2                 MS. CLAPP:  All right.  It's on.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Clapp, please

          4  proceed.

          5                 MS. CLAPP:  Good afternoon.  I'm here

          6  presenting testimony on behalf of Manhattan Borough

          7  President Scott Stringer. Thank you for the

          8  opportunity to testify today.
          9                 I believe that pedestrian safety must

         10  be paramount in our City's transportation planning,

         11  Intro 567- A is an important step in the right

         12  direction.  Although pedestrians far outnumber

         13  drivers in New York City, our roads were designed

         14  for cars with streets too wide, and sidewalks too

         15  narrow to safely accommodate pedestrian traffic.

         16  For decades, DOT has focused one-sidedly on a rapid

         17  and efficient movement of vehicles through our City

         18  streets. Recently, however, we've seen a much needed

         19  change with the City spending more time and

         20  resources to ensure that New York develops in a

         21  healthy and sustainable way.  The introduction of

         22  PlaNYC and the appointment of a pedestrian- friendly

         23  DOT Commissioner has been followed by plans for

         24  pedestrian plazas, hundreds of miles of new bike

         25  lanes, and congestion pricing.
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          2                 While the City has made great strides

          3  in reducing the number of pedestrian fatalities and

          4  injuries in recent years, the loss of life due to

          5  traffic is both tragic and unacceptable. We must do

          6  more.

          7                 There is hard evidence to support

          8  bold measures for pedestrian safety.  As injuries

          9  and fatalities continue to occur on notoriously

         10  dangerous streets, I can't help but wonder why.

         11                 I ask the DOT to take greater

         12  proactive steps in ensuring pedestrian safety:

         13                 Redesign dangerous streets, extend

         14  the curbs; add speed bumps, and introduce more

         15  sophisticated traffic signals.  The new buffered

         16  bike lane that DOT built along 9th Avenue between

         17  16th and 23rd Streets is an excellent model for what

         18  the new DOT is capable of, and what I hope to see

         19  become standard practice.  As traffic calming

         20  solutions are developed, I cannot underestimate the

         21  value of vetting these improvements through

         22  community process.  While DOT has the expertise of

         23  engineers, data, and resources, local residents

         24  offer their daily experience in the neighborhoods

         25  they call home, and with that experience comes
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          2  invaluable information about the effectiveness of

          3  our street design and ideas for improvement.

          4                 We, the leadership of the City, must

          5  do everything within reach to ensure that New York

          6  streets remain walkable and safe for New Yorkers

          7  today and for generations to come.  I applaud the

          8  sponsors of Intro 567- A for helping make this

          9  happen.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Ms.

         12  Clapp.

         13                 Noah Budnick and Brooke DuBose, to be

         14  followed by Christine Berthet, Martin Treat and

         15  Kathleen Treat.

         16                 MR. BUDNICK:  Good afternoon,

         17  Chairman Liu, Chairman Brewer, thank you for having

         18  us.  I'm Noah Budnick --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  She's actually a

         20  woman.

         21                 MR. BUDNICK:  Chairwoman Brewer,

         22  excuse me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Good to have

         24  you back Noah.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We love Noah.
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          2                 MR. BUDNICK:  It's good to be here.

          3                 I'm Noah Budnick, I'm the Deputy

          4  Director of Transportation Alternatives.  With me

          5  today is Brooke DuBose, our Pedestrian Advocate at

          6  Transportation Alternatives.  I'll be testifying on

          7  Intro 537 and Brooke will testify on Intro 567.

          8                 In recent years Transportation

          9  Alternatives has taken a keen interest in the impact

         10  parking on New York City's congestion crisis.

         11  Efforts to manage traffic, like Mayor Bloomberg's

         12  congestion pricing initiative, represent critical

         13  steps in taking control of New York City streets.

         14  But these efforts will be most successful if

         15  complimented by reforming the way we manage parking.

         16                 Poorly managed on- street parking

         17  encourages needless driving and can negatively

         18  impact everything from delivery schedules and air

         19  quality.  Unfortunately, in our efforts to better

         20  understand New York City's parking problems, we have

         21  run into a dearth of information regarding the

         22  supply of parking, and the regulations governing

         23  that supply.

         24                 This incomplete picture makes it

         25  difficult for City officials to accurately answer
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          2  elementary questions, such as whether New York is

          3  gaining or losing parking capacity.  The

          4  relationship between the price of off- street

          5  parking spaces and those at parking meters, as well

          6  as how the supply of off- street and on- street

          7  parking interact, are also poorly understood.

          8                 As New York City considers long

          9  overdue initiatives like implementing residential

         10  parking permits, developing market based pricing for

         11  on- street parking and reigning in the rampant abuse

         12  of government issued parking placards, information

         13  about parking supply and demand is critical.

         14                 The direct relationship between

         15  parking supply and drivers on the road has been well

         16  established.  Under the 1979 State Implementation

         17  Plan of the Clean Air Act, the EPA required the city

         18  to complete a study of off- street parking

         19  facilities in New York City to monitor this

         20  relationship.  This study has still not been

         21  completed by the Department of City Planning,

         22  leaving lawmakers unable to properly regulate

         23  parking supply.  Thankfully, DEC Commissioner

         24  Grannis has recently requested that the City

         25  Department of Environmental Protection complete this
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          2  study.  We urge the Department of City Planning to

          3  quickly follow through with this request to aid NYC

          4  lawmakers manage the congestion crisis.

          5                 We all bear witness to the cost of

          6  ignorance; millions of miles driven in search of an

          7  under- priced parking spots, rampant traffic

          8  congestion and streets too noisy and crowded with

          9  cars to support even the most basic street life.

         10  Legislation that begins an inventory of all New York

         11  City parking spaces, including metered and

         12  alternate- side spaces, as well as public and

         13  private parking facilities, is the first step

         14  towards making parking policy part of the solution

         15  to congestion, not a root cause of it.  An inventory

         16  of all parking placards issued by the City is also

         17  essential.  With these tools in hand, we can move

         18  forward with modernizing parking regulations and

         19  adjusting the price of on street parking to reduce

         20  congestion.

         21                 As we go about the long overdue

         22  business of managing our congestion crisis, lack of

         23  parking information looms large. Parking reform

         24  could be a key complimentary policy to congestion

         25  pricing and expansion of mass transit.  We urge the

                                                            81

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  Council to take up measures which will contribute to

          3  the better management of our streets.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Noah.

          6  So, are you in favor of the bill?  You said that

          7  getting a grip on the inventory of parking spaces is

          8  a good first step.  What does that mean.  Are you in

          9  favor or against the bill?

         10                 MR. BUDNICK:  Hearing the DOT testify

         11  today it sounds like they're on their way to doing

         12  this and I think that it's important that the bill

         13  reflect what the DOT is capable of doing because the

         14  important part of what the legislation does is that

         15  it will institutionalize this good policy that the

         16  City is working on.  I think, you know, with both of

         17  these bills our overall feeling is that they're

         18  steps in the right direction and that the agency,

         19  you know, this is a new time at the DOT and the

         20  agencies are putting their best foot forward, so

         21  hopefully, their work will be institutionalized by

         22  the legislation that the Council has put forward.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         24                 MS. DUBOSE:  Hi, so as Noah

         25  mentioned, my name is Brooke DuBose and I am a
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          2  Pedestrian Advocate and also a Staff Planner at

          3  Transportation Alternatives.

          4                 Each year in New York City over

          5  12,000 people are struck by motor vehicles and

          6  injured, often fatally.  That breaks down to roughly

          7  33 pedestrians and cyclists hit every day here. This

          8  staggering figure alone should make remedying this

          9  problem the most serious public health crusade of

         10  our time.  With almost no exception these

         11  debilitating injuries and deaths are preventable

         12  through basic changes to the street.  We not only

         13  know how to build and retrofit streets to make them

         14  safer, but we also know which streets need to be

         15  changed first and which populations are the most

         16  vulnerable.

         17                 Each year the same handful of streets

         18  in each borough claim the majority of pedestrian and

         19  cyclist injuries and fatalities.  In Manhattan, for

         20  example, it is almost always some variety of the 15

         21  wide cross- town streets, like 14th Street, 23rd

         22  Street, 34th Street, et cetera.  In Brooklyn,

         23  Eastern and Ocean Parkways are always on the list of

         24  worst corridors, and in the Bronx Fordam Road and

         25  Gun Hill Road also always make the list.  For
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          2  Queens, it is Queens Boulevard and Roosevelt Avenue,

          3  and in Staten Island Hylan Boulevard is that most

          4  dangerous street.  Just last Monday, 42 year old

          5  Maria Alvarenga was stuck and killed in a hit and

          6  run crash by a speeding driver.

          7                 Ten years ago, Queens Boulevard was

          8  known across the country as the Boulevard of Death,

          9  and the primary reason Queens Boulevard has lost its

         10  place as the worse road for pedestrian injuries and

         11  fatalities for the entire City is because these

         12  basic engineering improvements are finally being

         13  implemented by the DOT.

         14                 It is essential to immediately work

         15  on those streets that currently claim so many lives.

         16    And it is important that the DOT work with the

         17  community boards and local elected officials and

         18  citizens on the plans for these streets.  The number

         19  of injuries and fatalities will immediately

         20  decrease.

         21                 Similarly, we know that the same

         22  demographic groups of New Yorkers are involved in

         23  the majority of pedestrian crashes each year.  It is

         24  the very young and the very old who need the most

         25  protected space and time to cross the street.
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          2  Between 1995 and 2005, children ages one through

          3  fourteen made up 20 percent of the City's population

          4  and comprised 29 percent of all pedestrian crash

          5  hospitalizations, and seniors, age 65 and over made

          6  up 12 percent of the population and 18 percent of

          7  all hospitalizations.  So, what these statistics

          8  mean is that together, children and seniors make up

          9  one third of New York's population but account for

         10  one- half of all serious pedestrian casualties.

         11  This is why initiatives like the City's Safe Routes

         12  to School traffic safety program and Transportation

         13  Alternatives' Safe Routes for Seniors campaign are

         14  so important and need considerable funding.

         15  Transportation Alternatives believes that by making

         16  streets safe for the most vulnerable users, they

         17  will be safer for everyone.

         18                 We know that the DOT has programs

         19  like Safe Routes to Schools, Safe Routes to Transit,

         20  Bicycled Network Development and Traffic Calming

         21  that work on the Citywide, neighborhood and street

         22  level to make safety improvements.  We do not know

         23  how the Transportation and Police Departments, and

         24  increasingly the Department of Health and Mental

         25  Hygiene, work together to review crash data quickly,
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          2  reconcile high crash locations with existing

          3  projects and work interventions for these locations

          4  into their projects, nor do we know the agencies'

          5  policies for prioritizing locations that do not fall

          6  within existing projects.

          7                 Do we need to have more urgent and

          8  exhaustive investigations into crashes?  Definitely.

          9    Does City Hall need to treat the current rate at

         10  which cyclists and pedestrians are struck and killed

         11  in New York City as an epidemic?  Absolutely.  Do

         12  agencies need to work with communities from day one

         13  to fix dangerous streets?  Yes.  Does it make sense

         14  to legislate the actions of several City agencies

         15  without their input?  No.

         16                 More than ever, City Hall is making

         17  non- polluting, environmentally- friendly and

         18  healthy transportation the priority in New York

         19  City, so as agencies work hard to improve and

         20  promote walking, bicycling and transit, now is the

         21  opportunity for the Council to bring best practices

         22  from other world cities to New York, work with

         23  agencies to adapt to our streets and

         24  institutionalize them, so they are lasting programs

         25  that will work over many years to transform our
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          2  streets and improve our City.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well thank you very

          4  much, Ms. DuBose.  We have questions from

          5  Chairperson Brewer.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I have a very

          7  quick question. How do you get your data now?

          8  Obviously Transportation Alternatives does a huge

          9  amount in terms of pulling together reports and so

         10  on.  If you want to know street signs, parking,

         11  bicycling lane, et cetera, how do you go about

         12  getting the data now to do reports?  Signage?  Et

         13  cetera.

         14                 MR. BUDNICK:  To get information

         15  about how streets are laid out, often times we have

         16  our staff go out on the street and survey the

         17  locations.  There's a great tool called a measuring

         18  wheel, it's a handy tool, everyone should have one

         19  and you just roll it on the street and it counts how

         20  many feet so we can measure lane widths and the

         21  width of the street and then we go out and we survey

         22  what the parking signs are.  On occasion when the

         23  City puts out a plan for improvements, we stockpile

         24  those so we can go back and we can look at it, but

         25  those usually only apply to what the City is
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          2  proposing to do and not what's there on the street.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Then the

          4  question is, I mean we're very interested, at least

          5  I am, about the coordination of the agencies in

          6  terms of Mental Health, PD, and DOT.  So, in your

          7  work in terms of advocacy, do you ever have to try

          8  to get copies of these reports, and if so, how do

          9  you go about it?  If there is, God forbid, those

         10  fatalities.

         11                 MS. DUBOSE:  Certainly, this year

         12  I've worked on a memorial project for every

         13  pedestrian that's been killed in 2007, and it's very

         14  difficult to get the data, even though it is public.

         15  And so we've also gone through the process of

         16  working with our elected officials to FOIL that data

         17  and do an Freedom of Information request to Albany

         18  to the DMV up there who has the crash data, but even

         19  then, the reports are incomplete or inconsistent and

         20  we look at the press as well to get the information

         21  because it's not consistent throughout.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank

         25  you for testifying today.  Now we'll call up our
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          2  next panel consisting of Christine Berthet, Martin

          3  Treat and Kathleen Treat.

          4                 MS. BERTHET:  Thank you so much for

          5  having us.  I  apologize we don't have copies of my

          6  testimony, but, CHEKPEDS is the West Side coalition

          7  for pedestrian safety and we commend our elected

          8  officials for introducing a bill that will --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Christine,

         10  you've got to introduce yourself again.

         11                 MS. BERTHET:  I'm sorry, Christine

         12  Berthet from CHEKPEDS.

         13                 This bill will institutionalize the

         14  process to put urgency and focus on saving

         15  pedestrian lives and we really like it. Because what

         16  we call accidents are life altering tragedies.

         17  Since 2002, there have been 1000 pedestrian killed

         18  and 60,000 injured in New York City.  These are

         19  staggering numbers.  A few weeks ago we had a

         20  memorial for Cumo (phonetic), an eight-year-old boy

         21  who was killed on the 9th Avenue corridor.  He

         22  became part of a deadly pattern of 1,000 injuries

         23  and 15 deaths in ten years on that corridor.  So we

         24  applaud the sense of urgency and collaboration the

         25  bill will impart to the various agencies and
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          2  stakeholders.  The Police, the DOT and the

          3  Community.  We think it is sorely needed. However,

          4  we have some suggestion about addition items that

          5  should be included in the bill.  On the DOT side we

          6  note that the bill does not require that the

          7  community be involved with the DOT to design a

          8  solution, and to go out to inspect the location.  We

          9  think it should.  The Committee is the expert and

         10  they know intimately the behaviors at certain

         11  locations.  A few months ago a team of DOT inspected

         12  the dangerous intersection at the site where a young

         13  woman was hit and she's still in a coma.  The

         14  community was told that they were not invited to the

         15  walk- through specifically.  Now, Administration has

         16  changed, there is a new attitude, but it is quite

         17  shocking, I would say.  The community must be

         18  invited to the problem and solution identification

         19  and to go to your cost issue, I think there are very

         20  cost effective resources to shorten the time of the

         21  study.  We can really bring a lot of experience to

         22  the issue.  We are the stakeholders, we live here,

         23  we know the problems and those injured or dead are

         24  members of our community so we have the best vested

         25  interest in figuring the right solution.  It is

                                                            90

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  critical that the engineers will not be left to

          3  design solutions in a vacuum because it is not

          4  effective and it's too costly.  The second

          5  requirement is that the most efficient solution for

          6  the safety of pedestrians be implemented.  The

          7  solutions are known. There is even a report that

          8  tells you what is the most effective in terms of

          9  pedestrian safety, what reduces accidents and deaths

         10  by 50 percent, by 20 percent, by 30 percent.  There

         11  is a cookbook.  So it doesn't take an enormous

         12  amount of study, but what we need is a commitment

         13  for people to implement the best safety solution so

         14  we don't have to go back to that same intersection

         15  50 times.  And we know those best intersections.

         16  Unfortunately, in the example above, the solution

         17  that we got was to give us a lead pedestrian

         18  interval of three seconds.  You know, we all looked

         19  at that and said, it's absurd, it's not fixing the

         20  problem.  We are still unfortunately fighting the

         21  battle with the DOT engineers of how many deaths are

         22  tolerable so that cars can have ten more seconds to

         23  go through a light.  And we should be fighting the

         24  battle of how many cars we can afford without

         25  affecting the safety of pedestrians.  Sweden has
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          2  decided that the engineering of their street is

          3  going to target zero percent pedestrian fatalities.

          4  If Sweden knows how to do it with engineering

          5  resource, we should be too.

          6                 I really appreciate the deadlines you

          7  are giving the DOT to have 60 days to come back to

          8  the community.  It's not that there is so much to

          9  study, as I said, there is a cookbook, and if you

         10  know that pedestrians come first such a study should

         11  be done very quickly.  And further, all these deaths

         12  are emergencies and fixing this problem should take

         13  precedence over the other activities of the DOT.

         14                 Finally, we truly hope that this bill

         15  does not intend to replace a massive project that

         16  should be undertaken to address the ten percent most

         17  dangerous intersection, which would really resolve

         18  50 percent of the fatalities, which, therefore,

         19  would be really making your on- going process so

         20  much less costly. And, in fact, the DOT just

         21  obtained four billion dollars from the Department of

         22  Transportation, the federal money in the

         23  transportation implementation plan of NYMTIC.  And

         24  when you think of it, two percent of that would be

         25  $80 million which is plenty of money to do a one-
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          2  time project, as well as an on- going project.  So I

          3  believe the money is there but the political will to

          4  effect it, to put it on the pedestrian studies is

          5  not there and the priorities need to be changed.

          6                 It is a very good bill and we thank

          7  you for working with us on that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Ms.

          9  Berthet.

         10                 Push the button.

         11                 MR. TREAT:  Red button, --

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There you go.

         13                 MR. TREAT:  -- See I'm supposed to

         14  stop before crossing if I see red.  We've been

         15  working on this --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please identify

         17  yourself for the record.

         18                 MR. TREAT:  My name is Martin Treat,

         19  one of the founding members of CHEKPEDS, like

         20  Christine and my wife Kathleen. I'm also a member of

         21  the Community Board as Transportation Committee, as

         22  Executive Committee, and as Quality of Life

         23  Committee.  I became active in this issue when an

         24  acquaintance of mine was run down, actor Randolph

         25  Walker, while he was crossing 45th Street with a
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          2  light and with a bus turning, who didn't see him.

          3  I've seen some progress.  We saw from the DOT today

          4  that they're kind of willing to do this.  They've

          5  changed themselves in the last two or three years.

          6  They actually saw the words pedestrian safety

          7  frequently now, so I was encouraged by their

          8  testimony and I was very pleased to watch you grill

          9  them to try to get them to narrow down.

         10                 The only thing I wanted to add now,

         11  this 60 day thing and three accidents in one

         12  location.  Did you notice how much the DOT wanted to

         13  say we do 2,000 and 3,000 investigations a year, did

         14  it occur to anyone that they already have the

         15  statistics and all they have to do is take this rule

         16  60 days and match it to locations and three

         17  accidents in that period of time with statistics

         18  they already have, and if I was to improve this bill

         19  I would say something to that affect.  You already

         20  have the data, now here's how you use it, which is

         21  in effect what you're telling them. They kind of

         22  resist that and say well that's going to cost us

         23  more money, but as was pointed out they have money

         24  and all they have to do is redirect their process

         25  because they have the stats.  They have better stats
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          2  than we can ever get as members of the Hell's

          3  Kitchen Neighborhood Association from the Freedom of

          4  Information Act and wait those three to six months

          5  to finally get a two year old accident report.

          6  That's improving as well but they have the data

          7  already and there should be something in the bill to

          8  take advantage of that.  The whole world is changing

          9  now, 100 years of the vehicles' introduction in New

         10  York City and finally, Council's got a bill that's

         11  really got some teeth on it and it's going to at

         12  least start things rolling.  There is much more to

         13  do.  The accident of Cumo Harris on 17th Street,

         14  we're going to go look through it on Saturday.

         15  We're going to do a walk- around tour with the

         16  neighborhood.  You would think that after such a

         17  tragedy temporary measures could be made, light

         18  changes could be done within six days, the speed

         19  bump is something they resist so hard and you have

         20  to wonder why.  We put up poulardes (sic) of

         21  planters for that memorial service, the Police

         22  removed them that night not understanding this is a

         23  defensive measures that we should initiate

         24  throughout all of our corners, especially when there

         25  are playgrounds and schools.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Treat.

          5                 Ms. Treat.

          6                 MS. TREAT:  I'm Kathleen Treat, Chair

          7  of the Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood Association.

          8                 HK&A represents New Yorkers who live

          9  between 42nd Street and 34th Street.  North of us,

         10  every block has a Block Association, that's not true

         11  of the southern part of Hell's Kitchen, so we in

         12  effect are a Block Association for a large group of

         13  people.  One of our biggest issues is trying to deal

         14  with the Port Authority and, first of all, I want to

         15  say thank you very much to Council Member Gentile

         16  for the bill and thank you Council Member Liu for

         17  letting us speak.  I have no idea if those gentlemen

         18  who endlessly spoke this morning, if they hear us.

         19  I sure hope they do.

         20                 Ninth Avenue does not need a $3

         21  million study.  What we need is for DOT to come to

         22  our community board where all our Block Association

         23  Chairs are represented and our Traffic Committee on

         24  the Board, listen to us, we know the bad streets.  I

         25  don't need 15 guys from DOT coming to do more data
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          2  collection.  I know the double phone booth on 45th

          3  Street has got to be removed.  Two bus drivers

          4  killed two of our neighbors because their view was

          5  blocked by that phone booth.  DOITT is the agency in

          6  charge of those phone booths.  The phone booth is

          7  still there after two deaths.  So coordination also

          8  is paramount with all the other agencies.

          9                 Rather than be grateful to DOT I'd

         10  like to point out that in the previous

         11  administration it took Holy Cross School ten years

         12  to get a safety light.  I'm not grateful to them.

         13  One hundred and sixty seven pedestrian deaths is 167

         14  too many.  We need speed limit signs.  We need more

         15  no turn on red signs.  We need prevention first.  As

         16  somebody said earlier, why do we have to wait for

         17  another kid to be killed?  Prevent that death,

         18  please, first. Ask us.  Ask the community.

         19                 On 34th Street and Dyer Avenue, which

         20  is an entrance/exit off the Lincoln Tunnel.  It's a

         21  terrible, terrible intersection and it's forgotten,

         22  it's Port Authority.  There is a sign that says no

         23  turn on red across 34th Street from Dyer Avenue. If

         24  there's a panel truck in front of a driver, he can't

         25  see that sign.  And so a messenger was run down and
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          2  killed on 34th Street, somebody made a turn on red.

          3  So simple, these little things and it seems to take

          4  yet another person being killed and another person

          5  being killed.  Ninth Avenue has become slaughter on

          6  9th Avenue.  We just need things done.  I want them

          7  to ask us.

          8                 Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         10   --

         11                 MS. TREAT:  You're welcome.

         12                 MS. BERTHET:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- For your time

         14  and participating.

         15                 Oh, Council Member Gentile has --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Yes, I just

         17  want to make clear and thank CHEKPEDS for coming

         18  because I think you've added a lot to the testimony.

         19    But I think the intent of this bill was not to not

         20  consult the community, and to hear that the

         21  community was not invited to a walk- through is

         22  really outrageous and certainly that would not be

         23  the intent of this bill.  The recommendations that

         24  they would make would be part of consultation with

         25  the community. --
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          2                 MS. TREAT:  Those comments were

          3  directed to DOT.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Yes, no, no,

          5  I just wanted to make it clear.

          6                 Thank you so much.

          7                 MS. TREAT:  Sure, sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          9  Member Gentile, and Chairperson Gale Brewer, and

         10  with that there being no other witnesses for this

         11  joint hearing of the City Council's Committee on

         12  Technology and Government and on Transportation,

         13  this hearing is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)
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